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SPECIAL CAUTIONARY NOTE REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

officers

This Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q and the information incorporated herein by reference, and our other public documents and statements our
and representatives may make from time to time, contain forward-looking statements within the meaning of the federal securities laws. These

statements are intended to be covered by the safe harbor provisions of these laws. You can find many of these statements by looking for words such as "may,"”

"would,
"plan,”

"o

could,” "should,” "will," "expect,” "anticipate," "predict,” "project,” "potential,” "continue," "contemplate,"” "seek,"” "assume,” "believe," "intend,"
”non

"forecast,” "goal," "estimate," or other similar terms or expressions or the negative of these terms or expressions, although not all forward-looking

statements contain these identifying terms or expressions.

These forward-looking statements involve known and unknown risks and uncertainties and relate to future events or our future financial or operating

performance. These forward-looking statements are not historical facts, and are based on current expectations, estimates and projections about our industry
and business, and on management's beliefs and certain assumptions made by management, many of which, by their nature, are inherently uncertain and beyond
our control. Accordingly, you are cautioned that any such forward-looking statements are not guarantees of future performance and are subject to assumptions,
risks, uncertainties, and other important factors that are difficult to predict, and that actual results and outcomes may be materially different from the results,
performance, achievements, or outcomes expressed or implied by any of our forward-looking statements for a variety of reasons, including among others:

We depend on third-party companies to perform functions critical to our business, and any failure or increased cost on their part could have a
material adverse effect on our business.

We face intense competition and may not be able to compete successfully against existing or future competitors.

We may not timely identify or effectively respond to consumer needs, expectations or trends, which could adversely affect our relationship with our
customers, the demand for our products and services, and our market share.

Our business depends on effective marketing, including marketing via email, search engine marketing, influencer marketing, and social media
marketing. Our competitors have and may continue to cause us to increase our marketing costs and decrease certain other types of marketing, and
have and may continue to outspend us on marketing or be more efficient in their spend.

Economic factors, including recessions, other economic downturns, inflation, our exposure to the U.S. housing market, and decreases in consumer
spending, have affected and could continue to adversely affect us.

Trade policies or restrictions, import and export policies, tariffs, bans, or other measures or events and related macroeconomic effects.

Our changing business model and use of the Overstock brand, Bed Bath & Beyond brand, buybuy BABY brand, and other brands of ours, could
negatively impact our business.

The changing job market, the changes in our leadership team, the change in our compensation approach, changing job structures, or any inability to
attract, retain and engage key personnel could affect our ability to successfully grow our business.

We rely upon paid and natural search engines to rank our product offerings, and our financial results may suffer if we are unable to maintain our
prior rankings in natural searches.

If we are not profitable and/or are unable to generate sufficient positive cash flow from operations, our ability to continue in business will depend on
our ability to raise additional capital, obtain financing or monetize significant assets, and we may be unable to do so.

Our business depends on the Internet, our infrastructure and transaction-processing systems, and catastrophic events could adversely affect our
operating results.

Compliance with ever-evolving federal, state, and foreign laws and other requirements relating to the handling of information about individuals
necessitates significant expenditure and resources, and any failure by us, our vendors or our business partners to comply may result in significant
liability, negative publicity, and/or an erosion of trust, which could materially adversely affect our business, results of operations, and financial
condition.

If we or our third-party providers experience cyberattacks or data security incidents, there may be damage to our brand and reputation, material
financial penalties, and legal liability, which would materially adversely affect our business, results of operations, and financial condition.

Failure to comply with, or changes in, laws, regulations and enforcement activities may adversely affect the products, services and markets in which
we operate.

From time to time we are subject to various legal proceedings which could adversely affect our business, financial condition or results of operations.
Damage to our reputation or brand image could adversely affect our sales and results of operations.
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»  Ifwe do not successfully optimize and operate shipping operations or customer service operations, our business could be harmed.

o Ifwe fail to effectively utilize technological advancements, including in artificial intelligence, our business and financial performance could be
negatively impacted.

*  Global conflict could negatively impact our business, results of operations, and financial condition.

*  Product safety and quality concerns could have a material adverse impact on our revenue and profitability.

*  We depend on our suppliers’ and fulfillment partners' representations regarding product safety, content and quality, product compliance with various
laws and regulations, including registration and/or reporting obligations, and for proper labeling of products.

*  We have an evolving business model, which increases the complexity of our business.

»  Investment in new business strategies, acquisitions, dispositions, partnerships, or other transactions could disrupt our ongoing business, present risks
not originally contemplated and materially adversely affect our business, reputation, results of operations and financial condition.

In evaluating all forward-looking statements, you should specifically consider the risks outlined above and in this report and our Annual Report on
Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2024, filed with the SEC on February 25, 2025, especially under the headings "Special Cautionary Note
Regarding Forward-Looking Statements," "Summary of Risk Factors," "Risk Factors," "Legal Proceedings,” and "Management's Discussion and Analysis of
Financial Condition and Results of Operations." These factors may cause our actual results and outcomes to differ materially from those contemplated by any
forward-looking statement. Although we believe that our expectations reflected in the forward-looking statements are reasonable, we cannot guarantee or
offer any assurance of future results, levels of activity, performance or achievements or other future events. Our forward-looking statements contained in this
report speak only as of the date of this report and, except as required by law, we undertake no obligation to update forward-looking statements to reflect
events or circumstances occurring after the date of this report or any changes in our expectations or any change in any events, conditions or circumstances on
which any of our forward-looking statements are based.
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PART I. FINANCIAL INFORMATION

ITEM 1. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (UNAUDITED)

Beyond, Inc.
Consolidated Balance Sheets (Unaudited)
(in thousands, except per share data)

March 31, December 31,
2025 2024
Assets
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 114,576  $ 159,169
Restricted cash 26,905 26,924
Accounts receivable, net of allowance for credit losses of $2,680 and $2,236 18,072 15,847
Inventories 24,588 11,546
Prepaids and other current assets 12,323 14,021
Total current assets 196,464 227,507
Property and equipment, net 19,498 23,544
Intangible assets, net 32,773 30,246
Goodwill 6,160 6,160
Equity securities, including securities measured at fair value of $25,400 and $21,640 77,741 78,186
Operating lease right-of-use assets 6,131 6,858
Other long-term assets, net 24,958 29,453
Total assets $ 363,725 $ 401,954
Liabilities and Stockholders' Equity
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable $ 78,035 $ 81,939
Accrued liabilities 61,568 73,614
Unearned revenue 40,807 43,095
Operating lease liabilities, current 839 1,342
Short-term debt, net 24,898 24,871
Total current liabilities 206,147 224,861
Operating lease liabilities, non-current 6,293 6,452
Other long-term liabilities 7,917 7,909
Total liabilities 220,357 239,222
Commitments and contingencies (Note 9)
Stockholders' equity:
Preferred stock, $0.0001 par value, authorized shares - 5,000, issued and outstanding - none — —
Common stock, $0.0001 par value, authorized shares - 100,000
Issued shares - 63,413 and 59,560
Outstanding shares - 56,832 and 53,069 6 5
Additional paid-in capital 1,093,943 1,072,869
Accumulated deficit (780,378) (740,466)
Treasury stock at cost - 6,581 and 6,491 (170,203) (169,676)
Total stockholders' equity 143,368 162,732
Total liabilities and stockholders' equity $ 363,725 $ 401,954

See accompanying notes to unaudited consolidated financial statements.
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Net revenue
Cost of goods sold
Gross profit
Operating expenses
Sales and marketing
Technology
General and administrative
Customer service and merchant fees
Total operating expenses
Operating loss
Interest income, net
Other expense, net
Loss before income taxes
Provision for income taxes
Net loss
Net loss per share of common stock:
Basic
Diluted

Weighted average shares of common stock outstanding:

Basic
Diluted

Beyond, Inc.

Consolidated Statements of Operations (Unaudited)

(in thousands, except per share data)

See accompanying notes to unaudited consolidated financial statements.

Three months ended

March 31,

2025 2024
231,748 $ 382,281
173,616 307,922

58,132 74,359
31,290 67,906
26,718 29,581
14,314 20,454
9,357 13,943
81,679 131,884
(23,547) (57,525)
762 2,717
(16,933) (18,791)
(39,718) (73,599)
194 329
(39,912) $ (73,928)
(0.74) $ (1.62)
0.74) $ (1.62)
53,661 45,587
53,661 45,587
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Beyond, Inc.
Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Loss (Unaudited)
(in thousands)

Three months ended

March 31,
2025 2024
Net loss $ 39,912) $ (73,928)
Other comprehensive income
Unrealized gain on cash flow hedges, net of expense for taxes of $0 and $0 — 4
Other comprehensive income — 4
$ (39,912) $ (73,924)

Comprehensive loss

See accompanying notes to unaudited consolidated financial statements.



Table of Contents

Consolidated Statements of Changes in Stockholders' Equity (Unaudited)

Equity attributable to stockholders of Beyond, Inc.
Shares of common stock issued
Balance at beginning of period
Common stock issued upon vesting of restricted stock
Common stock issued for ESPP purchases
Common stock sold through offerings
Balance at end of period
Shares of treasury stock
Balance at beginning of period
Tax withholding upon vesting of employee stock awards
Balance at end of period
Total shares of common stock outstanding
Common stock
Balance at beginning of period
Common stock sold through offerings
Balance at end of period
Additional paid-in capital
Balance at beginning of period
Stock-based compensation to employees and directors
Common stock issued for ESPP purchases
Common stock sold through offerings, net
Balance at end of period
Accumulated deficit
Balance at beginning of period
Net loss
Balance at end of period
Accumulated other comprehensive loss
Balance at beginning of period
Net other comprehensive income
Balance at end of period
Treasury stock
Balance at beginning of period
Tax withholding upon vesting of employee stock awards
Balance at end of period

Total stockholders' equity

(in thousands)

Three months ended

March 31,
2025 2024

59,560 51,770

275 384

91 56

3,487 —

63,413 52,210

6,491 6,356

90 121

6,581 6,477

56,832 45,733

$ 58§ 5
1 _

$ 6 3 5
$ 1,072,869 $ 1,007,649
1,094 4,776

509 935

19,471 —

$ 1,093,943 $ 1,013,360
$ (740,466) $ (481,671)
(39,912) (73,928)
$ (780,378) $ (555,599)
$ — (506)
— 4

$ — (502)
$ (169,676) $ (166,345)
(527) (3,172)

$ (170,203) $ (169,517)
$ 143,368 $ 287,747

See accompanying notes to unaudited consolidated financial statements.
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Beyond, Inc.
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows (Unaudited)
(in thousands)

Three months ended

Cash flows from operating activities:
Net loss $
Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash used in operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization
Non-cash operating lease cost
Stock-based compensation to employees and directors
Gain on sale of intangible assets
Loss from equity method securities
Other non-cash adjustments
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Accounts receivable, net
Inventories
Prepaids and other current assets
Other long-term assets, net
Accounts payable
Accrued liabilities
Unearned revenue
Operating lease liabilities
Other long-term liabilities

Net cash used in operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities:
Purchase of equity securities
Purchase of intangible assets
Expenditures for property and equipment
Proceeds from the sale of intangible assets
Other investing activities, net

Net cash used in investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities:
Proceeds from sale of common stock, net of offering costs
Payments of taxes withheld upon vesting of employee stock awards
Other financing activities, net

Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities

Net decrease in cash, cash equivalents, and restricted cash
Cash, cash equivalents, and restricted cash, beginning of period

Cash, cash equivalents, and restricted cash, end of period $

March 31,
2025 2024

(39.912) $ (73,928)
4,844 3,960
727 831
1,094 4,776
(336) —
17,073 18,452
200 (76)
(2,225) (3,667)
(13,042) 137
2,167 2,297
(125) 135
(4,087) 10,059
(14,302) (1,412)
(2,288) 5,078
(662) (894)
(47) (358)
(50,921) (34,610)
(8,000) —
(5,214) (5,714)
(1,181) (3,422)
1,250 —
— 10
(13,145) (9,126)
19,472 —
(527) (3,172)
509 653
19,454 (2,519)
(44,612) (46,255)
186,093 302,749
141,481 $ 256,494

See accompanying notes to unaudited consolidated financial statements.
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Beyond, Inc.
Notes to Unaudited Consolidated Financial Statements

1. DESCRIPTION OF BUSINESS

Beyond, Inc. is an ecommerce focused affinity company that owns or has ownership interests in various retail brands, offering a comprehensive array
of products and services that enable its customers the ability to unlock their homes' potential while supporting their families and all of life's milestones. We
currently own Bed Bath & Beyond, Overstock, buybuy BABY, and other related brands and websites.

nn

As used herein, "Beyond," "the Company," "we," "our" and similar terms include Beyond, Inc. and its controlled subsidiaries, unless the context

indicates otherwise.
2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Basis of presentation

We have prepared the accompanying unaudited consolidated financial statements pursuant to the rules and regulations of the Securities and Exchange
Commission ("SEC") regarding interim financial reporting. Accordingly, certain information and footnote disclosures normally included in financial statements
prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States ("GAAP") have been omitted in accordance with the rules and
regulations of the SEC. These financial statements should be read in conjunction with our audited annual consolidated financial statements and related notes
included in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2024. There have been no significant changes to our significant accounting
policies disclosed in Note 2—Accounting Policies and Supplemental Disclosures, included in Part II, Item 8, Financial Statements and Supplementary Data, of
our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2024, except as disclosed below.

The accompanying unaudited consolidated financial statements include our accounts and the accounts of our wholly-owned subsidiaries and reflect all
adjustments, consisting only of normal recurring adjustments, which are, in our opinion, necessary for a fair presentation of results for the interim periods
presented. All intercompany account balances and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation. The results of operations for the three months ended
March 31, 2025, are not necessarily indicative of the results to be expected for any future period or the full fiscal year, due to seasonality and other factors.

Use of estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and
liabilities, revenues and expenses, and related disclosures of contingent liabilities in our consolidated financial statements and accompanying notes. Estimates
are used for, but not limited to, receivables valuation, revenue recognition, loyalty program reward point and gift card breakage, sales returns, inventory
valuation, asset useful lives, equity and debt securities valuation, income taxes, stock-based compensation, performance-based compensation, self-funded
health insurance liabilities, and contingencies. Although these estimates are based on our best knowledge of current events and actions that we may undertake
in the future, our accounting of these estimates may change from period to period. To the extent there are differences between these estimates and actual results,
our consolidated financial statements may be materially affected.

Recently adopted accounting standards

In November 2023, the FASB issued ASU 2023-07, Segment Reporting (Topic 280): Improvements to Reportable Segment Disclosures, which requires
public entities to disclose information about their reportable segments' significant expenses and other segment items on an interim and annual basis. For public
entities, ASU 2023-07 is required to be adopted for annual periods beginning after December 15, 2023, and for interim periods within fiscal years beginning
after December 15, 2024, with early adoption permitted. The Company adopted the provisions of this ASU as of January 1, 2024, with respect to the annual
disclosures beginning with the year ended December 31, 2024 and interim disclosures beginning with the three months ended March 31, 2025, including the
presentation of the comparable prior periods. The adoption of this ASU resulted in additional segment reporting disclosures in the Company's consolidated
financial statements.

10
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Recently issued accounting standards

In December 2023, the FASB issued ASU 2023-09, Income Taxes (Topic 740): Improvements to Income Tax Disclosures, which requires public
entities to disclose disaggregated information about a reporting entity's effective tax rate reconciliation as well as additional information on income taxes paid.
For public entities, ASU 2023-09 is required to be adopted for annual periods beginning after December 15, 2024, with early adoption permitted. This ASU
will result in us including the additional required disclosures when adopted and does not otherwise have a material impact on the Company's consolidated
financial statements.

In November 2024, the FASB issued ASU 2024-03, Income Statement—Reporting Comprehensive Income—Expense Disaggregation Disclosures
(Subtopic 220-40), which requires public entities to disclose disaggregated information about certain income statement line items in the notes to the financial
statements. For public entities, ASU 2024-03 is required to be adopted for annual periods beginning after December 15, 2026 and for interim periods beginning
after December 15, 2027, with early adoption permitted. This ASU will result in us including the additional required disclosures when adopted and does not
otherwise have a material impact on the Company's consolidated financial statements.

3. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT

The following tables summarize our assets and liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring basis using the following levels of inputs (in
thousands):

Fair Value Measurements at March 31, 2025

Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Assets:
Cash equivalents—Money market funds $ 22,033 § 22,033 $ — 3 —
Equity securities, at fair value 25,400 11,436 — 13,964
Available-for-sale debt securities (1) 10,989 — — 10,989
Debt securities, at fair value (1) 7,211 — — 7,211
Total assets $ 65,633 § 33,469 $ — 3 32,164
Fair Value Measurements at December 31, 2024
Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Assets:
Cash equivalents—Money market funds $ 21,799 $ 21,799 $ — —
Equity securities, at fair value 21,640 — — 21,640
Available-for-sale debt securities (1) 10,985 — — 10,985
Debt securities, at fair value (1) 14,814 — — 14,814
Total assets $ 69,238 $ 21,799 $ — 3 47,439

(1) Included in Other long-term assets, net in the consolidated balance sheets.

11
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The following table provides activity for our Level 3 investments (in thousands):

Amount

Level 3 investments at December 31, 2023 $ 51,530

Increase due to purchases of Level 3 investments 17,000

Decrease in fair value of Level 3 investments (21,836)

Accrued interest on Level 3 investments 745

Level 3 investments at December 31, 2024 47,439

Increase due to acquisition of Level 3 investments 1,117

Transfers out of Level 3 investments (7,510)

Decrease in fair value of Level 3 investments (8,794)

Accrued interest, net on Level 3 investments (88)

Level 3 investments at March 31, 2025 $ 32,164
4. PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT, NET

Property and equipment, net consist of the following (in thousands):
March 31, December 31,
2025 2024

Computer hardware and software, including internal-use software and website development $ 182,738 $ 202,005

Furniture and equipment 4,695 4,098

Leasehold improvements 1,512 1,466

188,945 207,569

Less: accumulated depreciation (169,447) (184,025)

Total property and equipment, net $ 19,498 § 23,544

Capitalized costs associated with internal-use software and website development, both developed internally and acquired externally, and depreciation
of costs for the same periods associated with internal-use software and website development consist of the following (in thousands):

Three months ended

March 31,
2025 2024
Capitalized internal-use software and website development $ 1,348 $ 3,384
Depreciation of internal-use software and website development 3,389 1,950

Depreciation expense is classified within the corresponding operating expense categories on our consolidated statements of operations as follows (in
thousands):

Three months ended

March 31,
2025 2024
Cost of goods sold $ 73 $ 98
Technology 4,463 3,517
General and administrative 89 108
Total depreciation $ 4,625 § 3,723

12
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5. INTANGIBLE ASSETS, NET

On January 30, 2025, we entered into an Asset Purchase Agreement with BBBY Acquisition Co., LLC ("BBBY") to acquire certain intellectual
property related to the buybuy BABY brand and closed the transaction on February 21, 2025. The Company acquired BBBY’s rights in the buybuy BABY
brand, assets, information and content related to the associated buybuy BABY website, including trademarks, domain names, data, information, content, and
select contractual rights, and goodwill associated with the brand for a total purchase price of $5.0 million which was paid at closing, and the assumption of
certain contractual liabilities described therein. The aggregate purchase price, inclusive of contractual liabilities assumed and direct acquisition-related
expenses, totaled $7.1 million which has been allocated to trade names, with an indefinite useful life.

On March 17, 2025, we entered into an Intellectual Property Asset Purchase Agreement with Lyons Trading Company, the operator of Proozy.com, to
sell our rights in the Zulily brand for a total sales price of $5.0 million while retaining a 25% ownership stake in the brand in the form of a newly created entity
("Zulily Newco"). In connection with this transaction, we received $1.25 million upfront, and will receive the remaining $3.75 million in quarterly installments
over the course of five years, which is recorded as a long-term receivable and included in Other long-term assets, net in our consolidated balance sheets. We
also recognized $1.12 million, which represents our 25% ownership stake in Zulily Newco, and is included in Equity securities in our consolidated balance
sheets.

Intangible assets, net consist of the following (in thousands):

March 31, December 31,
2025 2024
Intangible assets subject to amortization, gross (1) $ 5,645 $ 6,239
Less: accumulated amortization of intangible assets (3,223) (3,145)
Intangible assets subject to amortization, net 2,422 3,094
Intangible assets not subject to amortization 30,351 27,152
Total intangible assets, net $ 32,773 § 30,246

(1) At March 31, 2025, the weighted average remaining useful life for intangible assets subject to amortization, gross was 3.0 years.
6. EQUITY SECURITIES

Equity securities consist of the following (in thousands):

March 31, December 31,
2025 2024
Equity securities accounted for under the equity method under ASC 323 $ 52,341 $ 56,546
Equity securities accounted for under the equity method under the fair value option 25,400 21,640
Total equity securities $ 77,741 § 78,186

Our equity securities accounted for under the equity method under ASC 323 include equity securities in which we can exercise significant influence,
but not control, over these entities through holding more than a 20% voting interest in the entity. During the period ended March 31, 2025, after stockholder
approval was obtained from Kirkland's, Inc. ("Kirkland's") stockholders, we funded our additional $8.0 million investment in Kirkland's in exchange for
Kirkland's common stock and converted our $8.5 million convertible promissory note (plus accrued interest) into shares of Kirkland's common stock. After all
transactions, we own approximately 40% of Kirkland's outstanding shares of common stock. In addition, as part of the sale of our rights in the Zulily brand, we
retained a 25% ownership stake in the brand in the form of a newly created entity, Zulily Newco. See Note 5—Intangible Assets, net, for further information.

13
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The following table includes our equity securities accounted for under the equity method and related ownership interest as of March 31, 2025:

Ownership
interest
Medici Ventures, L.P. 99%
tZERO Group, Inc. 28%
SpeedRoute, LLC 49%
Kirkland's, Inc. 40%
Zulily Newco 25%

The carrying amount of our equity method securities was $77.7 million at March 31, 2025, which is included in Equity securities on our consolidated
balance sheets, of which $25.4 million was valued under the fair value option (tZERO, SpeedRoute, Kirkland's, and Zulily Newco). Our equity securities in
Kirkland's are carried at fair value based on Level 1 inputs. The aggregate fair value of our equity securities in Kirkland's at March 31, 2025 was $11.4 million.
For our equity method investments, there was no difference in the carrying amount of the assets and liabilities and our maximum exposure to loss, and there
was no difference between the carrying amount of our investment in Medici Ventures, L.P., and the amount of underlying equity we have in the entity's net
assets.

The following table summarizes the net loss recognized on equity method securities recorded in Other expense, net in our consolidated statements of
operations (in thousands):

Three months ended

March 31,
2025 2024
Net loss recognized on our proportionate share of the net assets of our equity method securities $ (4,205) $ (9,734)
Decrease in fair value of equity method securities held under fair value option (12,868) (8,718)

Regulation S-X Rule 10-01(b)(1)

In accordance with Rule 10-01(b)(1) of Regulation S-X, which applies to interim reports on Form 10-Q, the Company must determine if its equity
method investees are considered "significant subsidiaries". Summarized income statement information of an equity method investee is required in an interim
report if the significance criteria are met as defined under SEC guidance. For the periods ended March 31, 2025 and 2024, none of our equity method investees
met the significance criteria.

7. BORROWINGS

In October 2024, the Company entered into a Loan and Security Agreement (the "Loan Agreement") with BMO Bank N.A. (in such capacity,
"BMQ"), pursuant to which BMO agrees to lend the Company up to $25.0 million on a one-year revolving line of credit to aid the Company in securing
strategic ventures. In connection with the Loan Agreement, BMO issued a revolving line of credit promissory note (the "Revolving Note") and granted a lien
on the cash collateral account specified in the Loan Agreement (the "Cash Collateral Account"). The revolving line of credit bears interest on the unpaid
principal balance at an annual rate equal to the Secured Overnight Financing Rate, or SOFR rate, for a one-month interest period plus 1.00%, established by the
Federal Reserve Bank of New York. The Company is obligated to pay certain commitment fees on undrawn amounts under the Loan Agreement in amounts
specified in the Loan Agreement. The Loan Agreement and Revolving Note will terminate on October 18, 2025 and loans thereunder may be borrowed, repaid,
and reborrowed up to such date.

As of March 31, 2025, the outstanding balance on the line of credit was $25.0 million, net of $102,000 of capitalized debt issuance costs. Our total
outstanding debt on the line of credit is included in Short-term debt, net on our consolidated balance sheets.

The Loan Agreement is subject to limited affirmative covenants and negative covenants, including the requirement that the Company maintain cash in

the Cash Collateral Account in an amount that is three percent greater than BMO's aggregate commitments under the Loan Agreement. We are in compliance
with our debt covenants and continue to monitor our ongoing compliance with our debt covenants.
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8. LEASES

We have operating leases for a warehouse, office space, and data center. Our leases have remaining lease terms of one year to eight years, some of
which may include options to extend the leases perpetually, and some of which may include options to terminate the leases within one year. Variable lease costs
include executory costs, such as taxes, insurance, and maintenance.

The components of lease expenses were as follows (in thousands):

Three months ended

March 31,
2025 2024
Operating lease cost $ 912 $ 882
Variable lease cost 309 268

The following table provides a summary of other information related to leases (in thousands):

Three months ended

March 31,
2025 2024
Cash payments included in operating cash flows from lease arrangements $ 851 $ 936
The following table provides supplemental balance sheet information related to leases:
March 31, December 31,
2025 2024
Weighted-average remaining lease term—operating leases 7.12 years 6.65 years
Weighted-average discount rate—operating leases 7% 6 %
Maturity of lease liabilities under our non-cancellable operating leases as of March 31, 2025, are as follows (in thousands):
Payments due by period Amount
2025 (Remainder) $ 904
2026 1,247
2027 1,137
2028 1,099
2029 1,132
Thereafter 3,497
Total lease payments 9,016
Less interest 1,884
Present value of lease liabilities $ 7,132
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9. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES
Legal proceedings and contingencies

From time to time, we are involved in litigation concerning consumer protection, employment, intellectual property, claims under the securities laws,
and other commercial matters related to the conduct and operation of our business and the sale of products on our websites. In connection with such litigation,
we have been in the past and we may be in the future subject to judgments requiring us to pay significant damages or associated costs. In some instances, other
parties may have contractual indemnification obligations to us. However, such contractual obligations may prove unenforceable or non-collectible, and if we
cannot enforce or collect on indemnification obligations, we may bear the full responsibility for damages, fees, and costs resulting from such litigation. As a
result of such litigation, we may also be subject to penalties and equitable remedies that could force us to alter important business practices. Such litigation
could be costly and time consuming and could divert or distract our management and key personnel from our business operations. Due to the uncertainty of
litigation and depending on the amount and the timing, an unfavorable resolution of some or all of such matters could materially affect our business, results of
operations, financial position, or cash flows.

We establish liabilities when a particular contingency is probable and estimable which are included in Accrued liabilities on our consolidated balance
sheets. At March 31, 2025 and December 31, 2024, our established liabilities were not material.

10. INDEMNIFICATIONS AND GUARANTEES

During our normal course of business, we have made certain indemnities, commitments, and guarantees under which we may be required to make
payments in relation to certain transactions. These indemnities include, but are not limited to, indemnities to various lessors in connection with facility leases
for certain claims arising from such facility or lease, the environmental indemnity we entered into in favor of the lenders under our prior loan agreements,
customary indemnification arrangements in underwriting agreements and similar agreements, and indemnities to our directors and officers to the maximum
extent permitted under the laws of the State of Delaware. The duration of these indemnities, commitments, and guarantees varies, and in certain cases, is
indefinite. In addition, the majority of these indemnities, commitments, and guarantees do not provide for any limitation of the maximum potential future
payments we could be obligated to make. As such, we are unable to estimate with any reasonableness our potential exposure under these items. We have not
recorded any liability for these indemnities, commitments, and guarantees in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets. We do, however, accrue losses for
any known contingent liability, including those that may arise from indemnification provisions, when future payment is both probable and reasonably
estimable.

11. STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
Common Stock

Each share of common stock has the right to one vote. The holders of common stock are also entitled to receive dividends declared by the Board of
Directors out of funds legally available, subject to prior rights of holders of all classes of stock outstanding having priority rights as to dividends.

JonesTrading Sales Agreement

We entered into a Capital on Demand™ Sales Agreement (the "Sales Agreement") dated June 10, 2024 with JonesTrading Institutional Services LLC
("JonesTrading"), under which we have conducted and may in the future conduct "at the market" public offerings of our common stock. Under the Sales
Agreement, JonesTrading, acting as our sales agent or principal, may offer our common stock in the market on a daily basis or otherwise as we request from
time to time. We have no obligation to sell shares under the Sales Agreement, but we may do so from time to time. For the three months ended March 31, 2025,
we sold 3,486,895 shares of our common stock pursuant to the Sales Agreement and have recognized $19.5 million in proceeds, net of $398,000 of offering
costs, including commissions paid to JonesTrading. As of March 31, 2025, we had $136.3 million remaining available under our "at the market" sales program.
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Stock Repurchase Program

During the three months ended March 31, 2025 and 2024, we did not repurchase any shares of our common stock under our stock repurchase
program. As of March 31, 2025, we had $69.9 million available for future share repurchases under our current repurchase authorization through December 31,
2025.

12. STOCK-BASED AWARDS

We have equity incentive and compensatory plans that provide for the grant of stock-based awards, including restricted stock and performance shares
to employees and board members and provide employees the ability to purchase shares of our common stock through an employee stock purchase plan.
Employee accounting applies to equity incentives and compensation granted by the Company to its own employees. When an award is forfeited prior to the
vesting date, we recognize an adjustment for the previously recognized expense in the period of the forfeiture.

Stock-based compensation expense is classified within the corresponding operating expense categories on our consolidated statements of operations as
follows (in thousands):

Three months ended

March 31,
2025 2024
Cost of goods sold $ 1 3 —
Sales and marketing 103 222
Technology 57 1,980
General and administrative 933 2,574
Total stock-based compensation $ 1,094 § 4,776

Beyond restricted stock unit awards

The Beyond, Inc. Amended and Restated 2005 Equity Incentive Plan provides for the grant of restricted stock units and other types of equity awards to
employees and directors of the Company. The Compensation Committee of the Board of Directors approves grants of restricted stock unit awards to our
officers, board members and employees. These restricted stock unit awards generally vest over three years at 33.3% at the end of the first year, 33.3% at the
end of the second year and 33.4% at the end of the third year, subject to the recipient's continuing service to us. In addition to our traditional equity awards, in
fiscal 2024, we changed our vesting schedule for restricted stock units from three years to four years for all restricted stock units granted to employees below
Vice President level. These restricted stock unit awards will vest at 25% each year. In the first quarter of fiscal 2025, we adjusted back to the prior vesting
schedule of a three-year vesting schedule.

The cost of restricted stock units is determined using the fair value of our common stock on the date of the grant and compensation expense is either
recognized on a straight-line basis over the vesting schedule or on an accelerated schedule when vesting of restricted stock awards exceeds a straight-line basis.
The cumulative amount of compensation expense recognized at any point in time is at least equal to the portion of the grant date fair value of the award that is
vested at that date.

Performance Shares

During the three months ended March 31, 2025, we granted 472,240 performance-based shares ("PSUs") to our executive management team under the
2025 performance share award agreement. Each grant of PSUs is eligible to vest based on achieving three performance metrics, with 50% of the target number
of PSUs multiplied by the Adjusted EBITDA Performance Multiplier, 25% of the target number of PSUs multiplied by the Gross Margin Performance
Multiplier, and 25% of the target number of PSUs multiplied by the Contribution Margin Performance Multiplier, with the potential weighted average
maximum payout of 135% of the "Target" number of PSUs. To the extent any of the PSUs become earned based on our achievement of the three
aforementioned performance metrics, such earned PSUs will vest as to one-third of the earned PSUs on each of the first, second, and third anniversaries of the
grant date, subject to the recipient’s continued service through the vesting date. To be eligible to vest in any tranche of the PSUs, we must meet the threshold
performance metrics established for the performance period. We recognize expense as compensation cost based on the fair value on the date of grant over the
performance period, taking into account the probability that we will satisfy the performance goals.
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Stock-based compensation related to the PSUs is included in the stock-based compensation expense table above combined with the expense associated
with our restricted stock units, performance share options, and ESPP. Stock-based compensation related to the PSUs was a credit of $2.1 million due to staff
related reductions for the three months ended March 31, 2025.

Performance Share Options
Stock-based compensation related to the Performance Share Option is included in stock-based compensation expense table above combined with the
expense associated with our restricted stock units, PSUs, and ESPP. Stock-based compensation related to the performance share options was $1.0 million for

the three months ended March 31, 2025.

The following table summarizes restricted stock unit, PSU, and Performance Share Option award activity (in thousands, except per share data):

Three months ended

March 31, 2025
Weighted
Average
Grant Date
Units Fair Value
Outstanding—beginning of year 3,564 $ 20.98
Granted at fair value 1,027 7.96
Vested (275) 26.43
Forfeited (542) 16.49
Outstanding—end of period 3,774 7.19

Employee Stock Purchase Plan

Purchases under the 2021 Employee Stock Purchase Plan (the "ESPP") during the three months ended March 31, 2025 and 2024 were 90,921 shares
and 56,575 shares, respectively, at an average purchase price per share of $5.43 and $16.53, respectively. At March 31, 2025, approximately 2.6 million shares
of common stock remained available under the ESPP.

Stock-based compensation related to the ESPP is included in the stock-based compensation expense table above combined with the expense associated
with our restricted stock units, PSUs, and performance share options. Stock-based compensation related to the ESPP was $162,000 and $346,000 for the three
months ended March 31, 2025 and 2024, respectively.

13. REVENUE AND CONTRACT LIABILITY

Unearned Revenue

The following table provides information about unearned revenue from contracts with customers, including significant changes in unearned revenue
balances during the periods presented (in thousands):

Amount
Unearned revenue at December 31, 2023 $ 49,597
Increase due to deferral of revenue at period end, net 32,802
Decrease due to beginning contract liabilities recognized as revenue (39,304)
Unearned revenue at December 31, 2024 43,095
Increase due to deferral of revenue at period end, net 20,543
Decrease due to beginning contract liabilities recognized as revenue (22,831)
Unearned revenue at March 31, 2025 $ 40,807
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Our total unearned revenue related to outstanding loyalty program rewards was $6.6 million and $11.1 million at March 31, 2025 and December 31,
2024, respectively. Breakage income related to loyalty program rewards and gift cards is recognized in Net revenue in our consolidated statements of
operations. Breakage included in revenue was $6.6 million and $1.3 million for the three months ended March 31, 2025 and 2024, respectively. The timing of
revenue recognition of these reward dollars is driven by actual customer activities, such as redemptions and expirations. At March 31, 2025 and December 31,
2024, we had an additional $4.3 million and $4.6 million, respectively, of unearned contract revenue classified within Other long-term liabilities on our
consolidated balance sheets.

Sales returns allowance

The following table provides additions to and deductions from the sales returns allowance, which is included in our Accrued liabilities balance in our
consolidated balance sheets (in thousands):

Amount
Allowance for returns at December 31, 2023 $ 8,651
Additions to the allowance 105,353
Deductions from the allowance (104,478)
Allowance for returns at December 31, 2024 9,526
Additions to the allowance 20,955
Deductions from the allowance (22,760)
Allowance for returns at March 31, 2025 $ 7,721

14. NET LOSS PER SHARE

The following table sets forth the computation of basic and diluted net loss per common share for the periods indicated (in thousands, except per share

data):
Three months ended
March 31,
2025 2024

Numerator:
Net loss attributable to common stockholders $ (39,912) $ (73,928)
Denominator:
Weighted average shares of common stock outstanding—basic 53,661 45,587
Weighted average shares of common stock outstanding—diluted 53,661 45,587
Net loss per share of common stock:

Basic $ (0.74) $ (1.62)

Diluted $ (0.74) 8 (1.62)

The following shares were excluded from the calculation of diluted shares outstanding as their effect would have been anti-dilutive (in thousands):

Three months ended

March 31,
2025 2024
Restricted stock units, PSUs, and Performance Share Option 2,579 1,702
Employee stock purchase plan 405 110
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15. BUSINESS SEGMENTS

Segment Operations: We currently have one reportable segment, which is our Retail business. The reportable segment is comprised of our
Overstock.com operating segment and our Bed, Bath & Beyond operating segment, which are aggregated into a single reportable Retail segment due to their
similar economic characteristics and business activities. The Bed Bath & Beyond operating segment includes results from our buybuy BABY brand, which are
not material to the business and are not separately reviewed by the Chief Operating Decision Maker. The reporting segment primarily derives revenues from e-
commerce sales of home furnishing merchandise through our suite of websites and mobile apps.

The accounting policies of the Retail segment are the same as those described in the summary of significant accounting policies. The Chief Operating
Decision Maker (CODM), who is our Principal Executive Officer, makes resource allocation decisions based on reports that focus predominantly on Net
Revenues, Gross Profit, Sales and Marketing as a percentage of Gross Profit, Technology, and General & Administrative expenses as a percentage of Gross
Profit, as well as Operating Income (Loss) measured under GAAP, as reported on our Consolidated Statement of Operations. The CODM also receives our
Consolidated Cash and Cash Equivalents balance as a measure of liquidity as reported on our Consolidated Balance Sheet. The CODM uses Operating Income
(Loss) to evaluate income generated from segment resources in deciding whether to reinvest profits into the retail segment or into other parts of the entity, such
as to make acquisitions or investments. The CODM also uses Operating Income (Loss) to monitor budget versus actual results. The monitoring of budgeted
versus actual results is used in assessing performance of the segment and in establishing bonus metrics.

Cost of Goods Sold, Sales & Marketing, Technology, General & Administrative, and Customer Service and Merchant Fees, as reported on our
Consolidated Statement of Operations, are significant expenses evaluated by our CODM. The measure of segments assets is reported on the Consolidated
Balance Sheet as Cash and Cash Equivalents.

16. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS
Letter of Credit

On April 3, 2025, the Company entered into a standby letter of credit agreement with BMO Bank N.A. in an initial amount of $5.0 million, expiring
on April 3, 2026. The letter of credit was issued in favor of one of the Company's payment processors as a financial guarantee in connection with ongoing
payment processing operations. In accordance with the terms of the agreement with the Company's payment processor, the letter of credit is expected to be

increased by $3.0 million, 30 days following the initial issuance, and further increased by an additional $3.0 million, 60 days following the initial issuance.
Upon completion of these scheduled increases, the total letter of credit is expected to be valued at $11.0 million.
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ITEM 2. MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

The following discussion provides information that we believe to be relevant to an understanding of our unaudited consolidated financial condition
and results of operations. The statements in this section regarding industry outlook, our expectations regarding the performance of our business and any other
non-historical statements are forward-looking statements. Our actual results and outcomes may differ materially from those contained in or implied by any
forward-looking statements contained herein. These forward-looking statements are subject to numerous risks, uncertainties, and other important factors,
including, but not limited to, those described in "Special Cautionary Note Regarding Forward Looking Statements" and in Part II, Item 1A, "Risk Factors"
included in this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q. You should read the following discussion together with our unaudited consolidated financial statements and
related notes included in this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q and with the sections entitled "Special Cautionary Note Regarding Forward-Looking
Statements,” Part I, Item 1A4, "Risk Factors," and our consolidated financial statements and related notes included in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the
year ended December 31, 2024, filed with the SEC on February 25, 2025.

Overview

We are an e-commerce affinity marketing company that owns or has ownership interests in various retail brands with the aim of offering a
comprehensive array of products and services that enable its customers the ability to unlock their homes' potential while supporting their families and all of
life's milestones. In addition, we also offer an increasing number of add-on services across our platforms, including warranties, shipping insurance, installation
services, and access to home loans. We will also be expanding our global loyalty program, Beyond +, to encompass all affiliated entities across our cooperative
in order to incentivize customer retention within our growing ecosystem. We currently own Overstock, Bed Bath & Beyond, and buybuy BABY. As used
herein, "Beyond," "the Company," "we," "our" and similar terms include Beyond, Inc. and its controlled subsidiaries, unless the context indicates otherwise.

Through our Bed Bath & Beyond brand, we aim to provide an extensive array of home-related products tailored specifically for our target customers -
consumers who seek comprehensive support throughout their shopping journey, aspiring to discover quality, stylish products at competitive prices that align
with their budget requirements. We regularly refresh our product assortment to reflect the evolving preferences of our customers and aim to stay aligned with
current trends. The mission of this brand is to achieve category-leading ownership of four distinct rooms of the home: the bedroom, the bathroom, the kitchen,
and the patio, and our goal is for our assortment to include not only core legacy categories like bedding and kitchenware, but also adjacent categories like
bedroom and outdoor furniture and rugs. Furniture across all rooms continues to play a critical role in our strategy, as we expand our presence in both essential
and style-driven home furnishing categories. Leveraging an asset-light supply chain, we offer direct shipping to customers from both our suppliers and our
leased warehouse.

Bed Bath & Beyond's strategic priorities include assortment curation to elevate product quality levels and improve ease of selection, as well as the
addition of aspirational brands to elevate the curated shopping experience. Our goal is to elevate our website and customer engagement by fostering emotional
connections, building trust, and delivering compelling, value-driven experiences.

Through our Overstock brand, we aim to provide a wide array of quality goods at discounted prices, and a treasure hunt-like experience for our target
customers - consumers who are highly engaged, very accustomed to purchasing online, and actively seeking great deals. The mission of this brand is to delight
our customers by offering them deals on products they will love. Our product assortment includes home categories such as indoor and outdoor furniture, rugs,
décor, and lighting, as well as lifestyle categories such as jewelry and watches, apparel and accessories, sports and outdoor, and beauty and wellness.

Our recent buybuy BABY acquisition allows us to reunite two traditionally related brands, Bed Bath & Beyond and buybuy BABY, and support our
customers through key life stage shopping moments.
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Executive Commentary

This executive commentary is intended to provide investors with a view of our business through the eyes of our management. As an executive
commentary, it necessarily focuses on selected aspects of our business. This executive commentary is intended as a supplement to, but not a substitute for, the
more detailed discussion of our business included elsewhere herein. Investors are cautioned to read our entire "Management's Discussion and Analysis of
Financial Condition and Results of Operations," our interim and audited financial statements, and the discussion of our business and risk factors and other
information included elsewhere or incorporated in this report. This executive commentary includes forward-looking statements, and investors are cautioned to
read "Special Cautionary Note Regarding Forward-Looking Statements."

Revenue decreased 39.4% for the three months ended March 31, 2025, compared to the same period in 2024. This decrease was primarily due to a
46% decrease in orders delivered. The decrease was partially offset by a 12% increase in average order value. The decrease in orders delivered was driven by a
decline in website visits influenced in part by a shift in consumer spending preferences and macroeconomic factors impacting consumer sentiment and the
home furnishings industry as well as a reduction in overall sales and marketing spend as we focus on reducing spend by improving more efficient traffic
channels. The increase in average order value was largely driven by the seasonality of orders mixing into categories with higher average unit retail price.

Gross profit decreased 21.8% for the three months ended March 31, 2025, compared to the same period in 2024, primarily due to a decrease in
revenue. Gross margin increased to 25.1% for the three months ended March 31, 2025, compared to 19.5% for the same period in 2024, primarily driven by
merchandising actions and a reduction in carrier costs.

Sales and marketing expenses as a percent of revenue decreased from 17.8% for the three months ended March 31, 2024 to 13.5% for the three
months ended March 31, 2025, primarily due to decreased performance marketing expense and brand advertising.

Technology expenses totaled $26.7 million for the three months ended March 31, 2025, a $2.9 million decrease compared to the three months ended
March 31, 2024, primarily due to a reduction in staff-related expenses.

General and administrative expenses decreased $6.1 million for the three months ended March 31, 2025 compared to the three months ended
March 31, 2024, primarily due to a reduction in staff-related expenses.

Customer service and merchant fees decreased $4.6 million for the three months ended March 31, 2025 compared to the three months ended
March 31, 2024, primarily due to decreased order volume.

Our consolidated cash and cash equivalents balance decreased from $159.2 million as of December 31, 2024, to $114.6 million as of March 31, 2025.
Additional commentary related to macroeconomic trends

We continue to monitor recent macroeconomic trends and geopolitical events, including, without limitation, ongoing global conflicts, trade barriers
including tariffs, financial and stock market volatility, higher interest rates, inflation, and their impacts. These events have and may continue to negatively
impact consumer confidence and consumer spending, which have and may continue to adversely affect our business and our results of operations. Many of our
suppliers source from other countries and may be negatively affected by increased tariffs or other import/export controls by the United States and foreign
governments, as well as uncertainty in the market as it responds to global macroeconomic factors. Due to the uncertain and constantly evolving nature and
volatility of these trends and events, we cannot currently predict their long-term impact on our operations and financial results. As of March 31, 2025, the
challenges arising from these events have not adversely affected our liquidity or capacity to service our debt, nor have these conditions required us to reduce
our capital expenditures.
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Results of Operations
Comparisons of Three Months Ended March 31, 2025 to Three Months Ended March 31, 2024
Net revenue, cost of goods sold, gross profit and gross margin

The following table summarizes our net revenue, cost of goods sold, and gross profit (in thousands):

Three months ended

March 31,
2025 2024
Net revenue $ 231,748 $ 382,281
Cost of goods sold
Product costs and other cost of goods sold 173,616 307,922
Gross profit $ 58,132 $ 74,359
Year-over-year percentage change
Net revenue (39.4)%
Gross profit 21.8)%
Percent of net revenue
Cost of goods sold
Product costs and other cost of goods sold 74.9 % 80.5 %
Gross margin 25.1 % 19.5 %

The 39.4% decrease in net revenue for the three months ended March 31, 2025, as compared to the same period in 2024, was primarily due to a 46%
decrease in orders delivered. The decrease was partially offset by a 12% increase in average order value. The decrease in orders delivered was driven by a
decline in website visits influenced in part by a shift in consumer spending preferences and macroeconomic factors impacting consumer sentiment and the
home furnishings industry as well as a reduction in overall sales and marketing spend as we focus on reducing spend by improving more efficient traffic
channels. The increase in average order value was largely driven by the seasonality of orders mixing into categories with higher average unit retail price.

International net revenues were less than 7% of total net revenues for each of the three months ended March 31, 2025 and 2024.

Change in estimate of average transit times (days)

Our revenue related to merchandise sales is recognized upon delivery to our customers. As we ship high volumes of packages through multiple
carriers, it is not practical for us to track the actual delivery date of each shipment. Therefore, we use estimates to determine which shipments are delivered and,
therefore, recognized as revenue at the end of the period. Our delivery date estimates are based on average shipping transit times. We review and update our
estimates on a quarterly basis based on our actual transit time experience. However, actual shipping times may differ from our estimates, which can be further
impacted by uncertainty, volatility, and any disruption to our carriers caused by certain macroeconomic conditions, such as supply chain challenges, trade
barriers including tariffs, inflation, rising interest rates, climate and weather events, or geopolitical events.
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The following table shows the effect that hypothetical changes in the estimate of average shipping transit times would have had on the reported
amount of revenue and income before income taxes (in thousands):

Three months ended

March 31, 2025
Increase (Decrease) Increase (Decrease)

Change in the Estimate of Average Transit Times (Days) Revenue Income Before Income Taxes

2 $ (5,049) $ (942)
1 $ (2,321) $ (433)
As reported As reported As reported
-1 $ 2310 § 431
-2 $ 5013 § 935

Gross profit and gross margin

Our overall gross margins fluctuate based on factors such as competitive pricing; product costs; discounting; product mix of sales; advertising revenue
and our marketing allowance program; and operational and fulfillment costs which include costs incurred to operate and staff warehouses, including rent and
depreciation expense associated with these facilities, costs to receive, inspect, pick, and prepare customer order for delivery, and direct and indirect labor costs
including payroll, payroll-related benefits, and stock-based compensation, all of which we include as costs in calculating gross margin.

Gross margins for the past five quarterly periods and fiscal year ending 2024 were:

Q12024 Q2 2024 Q3 2024 Q4 2024 FY 2024 Q1 2025
Gross margin 19.5 % 20.1 % 212 % 23.0 % 20.8 % 25.1 %

Gross profit for the three months ended March 31, 2025 decreased 21.8% compared to the same period in 2024, primarily due to a decrease in
revenue. Gross margin increased to 25.1% for the three months ended March 31, 2025, compared to 19.5% for the same period in 2024, primarily driven by
merchandising actions and a reduction in carrier costs.

Operating expenses

Sales and marketing expenses

We use a variety of online advertising channels to attract new and repeat customers, including search engine marketing, personalized emails, mobile
app, loyalty program, affiliate marketing, display banners, and social media. We also build our brand awareness through linear and streaming TV advertising.

Costs associated with our discounted shipping and other promotions, such as coupons, are not included in sales and marketing expenses. Rather, they

are accounted for as a reduction in revenue as they reduce the amount of consideration we expect to receive in exchange for goods or services and therefore
affect net revenues and gross margin. We consider these promotions to be an effective marketing tool.
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The following table summarizes our sales and marketing expenses (in thousands):

Three months ended

March 31,
2025 2024

Sales and marketing expenses $ 31,290 $ 67,906

Advertising expense included in sales and marketing expenses 29,377 64,960
Year-over-year percentage change

Sales and marketing expenses (53.9)%

Advertising expense included in sales and marketing expenses (54.8)%
Percent of net revenue

Sales and marketing expenses 13.5 % 17.8 %

Advertising expense included in sales and marketing expenses 12.7 % 17.0 %

The 430 basis point decrease in sales and marketing expenses as a percent of net revenue for the three months ended March 31, 2025, as compared to
the same period in 2024, was primarily due to decreased performance marketing expense and brand advertising.

Technology expenses

We seek to deploy our capital resources efficiently in technology to support operations, including private and public cloud, web services, customer
support solutions, and product search. We aim to enhance the customer experience by investing in technology, including investing in machine learning
algorithms and generative Al, improving our process automation and efficiency, modernizing and expanding our systems, and supporting and expanding our
logistics infrastructure. We expect to continue to incur technology expenses to support these efforts and these expenditures may continue to be material.

The frequency and variety of cyberattacks on our websites, enterprise systems, services, and on third parties we use to support our technology
continues to increase. The impact of such attacks, their costs, and the costs we incur to protect ourselves against future attacks, have not been material to date.
However, we consider the risk introduced by cyberattacks to be serious and will continue to incur costs related to efforts to protect ourselves against them.

The following table summarizes our technology expenses (in thousands):

Three months ended

March 31,
2025 2024
Technology expenses $ 26,718 $ 29,581
Year-over-year percentage change
Technology expenses 9.71%
Technology expenses as a percent of net revenue 11.5% 7.7 %

The $2.9 million decrease in technology expenses for the three months ended March 31, 2025, as compared to the same period in 2024, was primarily
due to a reduction in staff-related expenses.
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General and administrative expenses

The following table summarizes our general and administrative expenses (in thousands):

Three months ended

March 31,
2025 2024
General and administrative expenses $ 14,314 $ 20,454
Year-over-year percentage change
General and administrative expenses (30.0)%
General and administrative expenses as a percent of net revenue 6.2 % 54%

The $6.1 million decrease in general and administrative expenses for the three months ended March 31, 2025, as compared to the same period in 2024,
was primarily due to a reduction in staff-related expenses.

Customer service and merchant fees
Customer service and merchant fees include customer service costs and merchant processing fees associated with customer payments made by credit
cards and other payment methods and other variable fees. Customer service and merchant fees as a percent of net revenue may vary due to several factors, such

as our ability to effectively manage customer service costs and merchant fees.

The following table summarizes our customer service and merchant fees (in thousands):

Three months ended

March 31,
2025 2024
Customer service and merchant fees $ 9,357 $ 13,943
Year-over-year percentage change
Customer service and merchant fees (32.9)%
Customer service and merchant fees as a percent of net revenue 4.0 % 3.6 %

The $4.6 million decrease in customer service and merchant fees for the three months ended March 31, 2025, as compared to the same period in 2024,
was primarily due to decreased order volume.

Other expense, net

The $1.9 million decrease in other expense, net for the three months ended March 31, 2025 as compared to the same period in 2024, was primarily due
to a $1.4 million decrease in loss recognized from our equity method securities.

Income taxes

Our income tax provision for interim periods is determined using an estimate of our annual effective tax rate adjusted for discrete items, if any, for
relevant interim periods. We update our estimate of the annual effective tax rate each quarter and make cumulative adjustments if our estimated annual
effective tax rate changes.

Our quarterly tax provision and our quarterly estimate of our annual effective tax rate are subject to significant variations due to several factors
including: variability in predicting our pre-tax and taxable income, the mix of jurisdictions to which those items relate, relative changes in expenses or losses
for which tax benefits are limited or not recognized, how we do business, fluctuations in our stock price, economic outlook, political climate, and other
conditions such as supply chain challenges, inflation, rising interest rates, and geopolitical events. In addition, changes in laws, regulations, and administrative
practices will impact our rate. Our effective tax rate can be volatile based on the amount of pre-tax income. For example, the impact of discrete items on our
effective tax rate is greater when pre-tax income is lower.
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Our provision for income tax for the three months ended March 31, 2025 and 2024 was $194,000 and $329,000, respectively. The effective tax rate for
the three months ended March 31, 2025 and 2024 was (0.5)% and (0.4)%, respectively. Our tax provision and rate differs from the statutory federal income tax
rate of 21% primarily due to year-to-date losses on our retail operations for which tax benefits are limited.

Each quarter we assess on a jurisdictional basis whether it is more likely than not that our deferred tax assets will be realized under ASC Topic 740.
We have no carryback ability, and therefore we must rely on future taxable income, including tax planning strategies and future reversals of taxable temporary
differences, to recover our deferred tax assets. We assess available positive and negative evidence to estimate whether we will generate sufficient future taxable
income to use our existing deferred tax assets. A significant piece of objective negative evidence evaluated as of March 31, 2025, is the cumulative loss
position over a three-year period generated by our U.S. retail operations. On the basis of this evaluation, we continue to maintain a valuation allowance against
our deferred tax assets for the U.S. jurisdiction, not supported by reversals of taxable temporary differences. We intend to continue maintaining a valuation
allowance on our net U.S. deferred tax assets until there is sufficient evidence to support the reversal of all or some portion of these allowances. We will
continue to monitor the need for a valuation allowance against our deferred tax assets on a quarterly basis.

As we repatriate foreign earnings for use in the United States, the distributions are generally exempt from federal and foreign income taxes but may be
subject to certain state taxes. As of March 31, 2025, the cumulative amount of foreign earnings considered permanently reinvested upon which taxes have not
been provided, and the corresponding unrecognized deferred tax liability, was not material.

We are subject to taxation in the United States and multiple state and foreign jurisdictions. Tax years beginning in 2020 are subject to examination by
taxing authorities, although net operating loss and credit carryforwards from all years are subject to examinations and adjustments for at least three years
following the year in which the attributes are used.

Liquidity and Capital Resources
Overview

We believe that our cash and cash equivalents currently on hand and expected cash flows from future operations will be sufficient to continue
operations for at least the next twelve months. We continue to monitor, evaluate, and manage our operating plans, forecasts, and liquidity considering the most
recent developments driven by macroeconomic conditions, such as supply chain challenges, inflation, rising interest rates, tariffs, bans, or other measures or
events that increase the effective price of products, and other geopolitical events. We proactively seek opportunities to improve the efficiency of our operations
and have in the past and may in the future take steps to realize internal cost savings, including aligning our staffing needs, creating a more variable cost
structure to better support our current and expected future levels of operations and process streamlining.

We periodically evaluate opportunities to repurchase our equity securities, obtain credit facilities, or issue additional debt or equity securities, which
may impact our future operations and liquidity. In addition, we may, from time to time, consider the investment in, or acquisition of, complementary
businesses, products, services, or technologies to expand our business, any of which might affect our liquidity requirements or cause us to issue additional debt
or equity securities that would be dilutive to stockholders.

Our future capital requirements will depend on many factors, including, but not limited to, our growth, our ability to execute on our business strategy,
our ability to realize the benefits of any investment in new business strategies, acquisitions, or other transactions, and consumer sentiment towards our
offerings. In the event that additional liquidity is required from outside sources, we may not be able to raise the capital on terms acceptable to us or at all. If we
are unable to raise additional capital when desired, our business, financial condition, and results of operations could be adversely affected.
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Current sources of liquidity

Our principal sources of liquidity are existing cash and cash equivalents and accounts receivable, net. At March 31, 2025, we had $114.6 million of
cash and cash equivalents and $18.1 million of accounts receivable, net of allowance for credit losses.

On April 3, 2025, the Company entered into a standby letter of credit agreement with BMO Bank N.A. in an initial amount of $5.0 million, expiring
on April 3, 2026. The letter of credit was issued in favor of one of the Company's payment processors as a financial guarantee in connection with ongoing
payment processing operations. In accordance with the terms of the agreement with the Company's payment processor, the letter of credit is expected to be
increased by $3.0 million, 30 days following the initial issuance, and further increased by an additional $3.0 million, 60 days following the initial issuance.
Upon completion of these scheduled increases, the total letter of credit is expected to be valued at $11.0 million.

We entered into a Sales Agreement dated June 10, 2024 with JonesTrading, under which have conducted and may in the future conduct "at the market"
public offerings of our common stock. Under the Sales Agreement, JonesTrading, acting as our sales agent or principal, may offer our common stock in the
market on a daily basis or otherwise as we request from time to time. At March 31, 2025, we had $136.3 million available under our "at the market" sales
program. We have no obligation to sell additional shares under the Sales Agreement, but we may do so from time to time. Under the agreement, we will pay
JonesTrading up to a 2% sales commission on all sales. For the three months ended March 31, 2025, we sold 3,486,895 shares of our common stock pursuant
to the Sales Agreement and have recognized $19.5 million in proceeds, net of $398,000 of offering costs, including commissions paid to JonesTrading.

Cash flow information is as follows (in thousands):

Three months ended

March 31,
2025 2024
Cash (used in) provided by:
Operating activities $ (50,921) $ (34,610)
Investing activities (13,145) (9,126)
Financing activities 19,454 2,519)

Operating activities

Cash received from customers generally corresponds to our net revenues as our customers primarily use credit cards to buy from us, causing our
receivables from these sales transactions to settle quickly. We have payment terms with our partners that generally extend beyond the amount of time necessary
to collect proceeds from our customers.

The $50.9 million of net cash used in operating activities during the three months ended March 31, 2025 was primarily due to loss from operating
activities adjusted for non-cash items of $16.3 million and cash used by changes in operating assets and liabilities of $34.6 million with $15.0 million used for

the purchase of inventory and the remainder primarily due to timing of partner and marketing payments.

The $34.6 million of net cash used in operating activities during the three months ended March 31, 2024 was primarily due to loss from operating
activities adjusted for non-cash items of $46.0 million offset by cash provided by changes in operating assets and liabilities of $11.4 million.

Investing activities
For the three months ended March 31, 2025, investing activities resulted in a net cash outflow of $13.1 million, primarily due to $8.0 million for
purchases of equity securities, $5.2 million for purchases of intangible assets, and $1.2 million of expenditures for property and equipment, offset by $1.3

million of proceeds received from the sale of intangible assets.

For the three months ended March 31, 2024, investing activities resulted in a net cash outflow of $9.1 million, primarily due to $5.7 million for
purchases of intangible assets and $3.4 million of expenditures for property and equipment.
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Financing activities

For the three months ended March 31, 2025, financing activities resulted in a net cash inflow of $19.5 million, primarily due to $19.5 million in net
proceeds from the sales of our common stock pursuant to our "at the market" public offering, net of offering costs.

For the three months ended March 31, 2024, financing activities resulted in a net cash outflow of $2.5 million, primarily due to $3.2 million for
payment of taxes withheld upon vesting of employee stock awards.

Contractual Obligations and Commitments

The following table summarizes our contractual obligations as of March 31, 2025 and the effect such obligations and commitments are expected to
have on our liquidity and cash flow in future periods (in thousands):

Less than 1-3 3-5 More than 5
Contractual Obligations Total 1 year years years years
Operating leases (1) $ 9,016 $ 1,215  $ 2,348 $ 2215  $ 3,238
Total contractual cash obligations $ 9,016 § 1,215 $ 2,348  $ 2215 $ 3,238

(1) Represents the future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases. For information regarding our operating lease
obligations, see Note 8—Leases, in the Notes to Unaudited Consolidated Financial Statements included in Item 1, Part I, Financial Statements
(Unaudited) of this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q.

Tax contingencies

We are involved in various tax matters, the outcomes of which are uncertain. As of March 31, 2025, accrued tax contingencies were $3.7 million.
Changes in federal, foreign, state, and local tax laws may increase our tax contingencies. The timing of the resolution of income tax contingencies is highly
uncertain, and the amounts ultimately paid, if any, upon resolution of issues raised by the taxing authorities may differ from the amounts accrued. It is
reasonably possible that within the next 12 months we will receive additional assessments by various tax authorities. These assessments may or may not result
in changes to our contingencies related to positions on prior years' tax filings.

Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

The preparation of our financial statements requires that we make estimates and judgments. We base these on historical experience and on other
assumptions that we believe to be reasonable. Except as disclosed in Note 2—Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, in the Notes to Unaudited
Consolidated Financial Statements included in Item 1, Part I, Financial Statements (Unaudited) of this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q, there have been no
material changes to our critical accounting policies and estimates as compared to the critical accounting policies and estimates described in Critical Accounting
Policies and Estimates, included in Part II, Item 7, Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations and in Note 2—
Accounting Policies and Supplemental Disclosures, included in Part II, Item 8, Financial Statements and Supplementary Data, of our Annual Report on
Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2024.
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ITEM 3. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK

We are exposed to market risk from interest rate changes, foreign currency fluctuations, and changes in the market values of our securities.
Information relating to quantitative and qualitative disclosures about these market risks is set forth below.

Interest Rate Sensitivity

The fair value of our cash and cash equivalents (highly liquid instruments with a remaining maturity of 90 days or less at the date of purchase) would
not be significantly affected by either an increase or decrease in interest rates due mainly to the short-term nature of these instruments.

Interest on the revolving line of credit incurred pursuant to the Credit Agreement described herein would accrue based on market rates plus 1.00%, for
a one-month interest period; however, we do not expect that any changes in prevailing interest rates will have a material impact on our results of operations.

Foreign Currency Risk

Most of our sales and operating expenses are denominated in U.S. dollars, and therefore, our net revenue and operating expenses are not currently
subject to significant foreign currency risk. As we grow our operations, our exposure to foreign currency risk could become more significant.

Inflation

Increases in commodity and shipping prices and energy and labor costs have resulted in inflationary pressures across various parts of our business and
operations, including our partners and supply chain. We continue to monitor the impact of inflation to minimize its effects on our customers. We work with our
partners to limit the amount of cost increases that are passed on through higher pricing. If costs borne by the Company or our partners were to be subject to
incremental inflationary pressures, we may not be able to fully offset such higher costs through pricing actions or other cost efficiency measures. Our inability
or failure to do so could harm our business, financial condition, and results of operations. While it is difficult to accurately measure the impact of inflation due
to the imprecise nature of the estimates required, we believe the effects of inflation, if any, on our historical results of operations and financial condition have
been immaterial. We cannot assure you, however, that our results of operations and financial condition will not be materially impacted by inflation in the
future.

Investment Risk

The fair values of our equity and debt securities may be subject to fluctuations due to volatility of the stock market in general, investment-specific
circumstances, and changes in general economic conditions. At March 31, 2025, our recorded value in equity securities of private and public companies was
$77.7 million, of which $11.4 million relates to publicly-traded companies, recorded at fair value, which are subject to market price volatility. At March 31,
2025, $14.0 million of our equity securities and $18.2 million of our debt securities are recorded at fair value using Level 3 inputs. Our fair value assessment of
private companies includes a review of recent operating results and trends, recent sales/acquisitions of the securities, and other publicly available data.
Valuations of private companies are inherently more complex due to the lack of readily available market data. As such, we believe that providing a sensitivity
analysis is not practicable. These investments valued using Level 3 inputs represent 49.0% of assets measured at fair value. See Note 3—Fair Value
Measurement for further information. For our equity interest in Medici Ventures, L.P., we record our proportionate share of the entity's reported net income or
loss, which reflects the fair value changes of the underlying investments of the entity and any other income or losses of the entity.
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ITEM 4. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES
Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

We carried out an evaluation of the effectiveness of our disclosure controls and procedures as required by Rule 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e) of the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the "Exchange Act") under the supervision and with the participation of our principal executive officer and
principal financial officer, as of the end of the period covered by this report. Based on this evaluation, our principal executive officer and principal financial
officer concluded that our disclosure controls and procedures were effective at the reasonable assurance level.

Limitations on Disclosure Controls and Procedures

In designing and evaluating our disclosure controls and procedures, management recognizes that any controls and procedures, no matter how well
designed and operated, can provide only reasonable assurance of achieving the desired control objectives. Management does not expect, however, that our
disclosure controls and procedures will prevent or detect all error and fraud. Any control system, no matter how well designed and operated, is based upon
certain assumptions and can provide only reasonable, not absolute, assurance that its objectives will be met. Further, no evaluation of controls can provide
absolute assurance that misstatements due to error or fraud will not occur or that all control issues and instances of fraud, if any, within the Company have been
detected.

Changes in Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

There were no changes in our internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the quarter ended March 31, 2025, that have materially
affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect, our internal control over financial reporting.
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PART II. OTHER INFORMATION
ITEM 1. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

From time to time, we are involved in, or become subject to litigation or other legal proceedings concerning consumer protection, employment,
privacy, intellectual property, claims under the securities laws, and other commercial matters related to the conduct and operation of our business and the sale
of products on our websites. We also prosecute lawsuits to enforce our legal rights. In connection with such litigation or other legal proceedings, we have been
in the past and we may be in the future subject to equitable remedies relating to the operation of our business or judgments requiring us to pay significant
damages or associated costs. Such litigation could be costly and time consuming and could divert or distract our management and key personnel from our
business operations. Due to the uncertainty of litigation and depending on the amount and the timing, an unfavorable resolution of some or all of such matters
could materially affect our business, results of operations, financial position, or cash flows. For additional details, see the information set forth under Item I of
Part I, Financial Statements (Unaudited}—Note 9—Commitments and Contingencies, subheading Legal Proceedings and Contingencies, contained in the
Notes to Unaudited Consolidated Financial Statements of this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q, which is incorporated by reference in answer to this Item.

ITEM 1A. RISK FACTORS

Any investment in our securities involves a high degree of risk. Please consider the following risk factors and the risk factors previously disclosed in
Part 1, Item 14, "Risk Factors,” of our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2024 carefully. If any one or more of such risks were to
occur, it could have a material adverse effect on our business, prospects, financial condition and results of operations, and the market price of our securities
could decrease significantly. Statements to the effect that an event could or would harm our business (or have an adverse effect on our business or similar
statements) mean that the event could or would have a material adverse effect on our business, prospects, financial condition and results of operations, which
in turn could or would have a material adverse effect on the market price of our securities. Many of the risks we face involve more than one type of risk.
Consequently, you should carefully read all of the risk factors below, the risk factors described in our Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2024, and in
any reports we file with the SEC after we file this Form 10-Q, before making any decision to acquire or hold our securities.

Other than the risk factors set forth below, there are no material changes from the risk factors previously disclosed in Part I, Item 1A, "Risk Factors,"
of our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2024.

Tariffs, bans, or other measures or events that increase the effective price of products or limit our ability to access products we or our suppliers, fulfillment
partners, or other third parties that import or export could have a material adverse effect on our business.

We and many of our suppliers and fulfillment partners source a large percentage of the products we offer on our Website from China and other
countries. Restrictions on international trade, including increased tariffs or other trade barriers are expected to increase the prices of imported products sold on
our Website or limit our ability to access products sold on our Website. These factors in turn could reduce consumer demand and impact sales volume.
Increased prices and/or supply chain challenges and the unpredictability of applicable trade barriers, including their scope and duration, have had an adverse
effect and could in the future have a material adverse effect on our financial results, business and prospects, including due to their impact on general
macroeconomic conditions.

ITEM 2. UNREGISTERED SALES OF EQUITY SECURITIES AND USE OF PROCEEDS
Recent Purchases of Equity Securities

See Note 11—Stockholders' Equity, in the Notes to Unaudited Consolidated Financial Statements included in Item 1, Part I, Financial Statements
(Unaudited) of this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for information regarding our authorized share repurchase program. There were no repurchases made
during the three months ended March 31, 2025. As of March 31, 2025, the approximate dollar value of shares that may yet be purchased under the stock
repurchase program is $69.9 million.

ITEM 3. DEFAULTS UPON SENIOR SECURITIES

None.
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ITEM 4. MINE SAFETY DISCLOSURES
Not applicable.

ITEM S. OTHER INFORMATION

(a) Disclosure in lieu of reporting on a Current Report on Form 8-K.
None.

(b) Material changes to the procedures by which security holders may recommend nominees to the board of directors
None.

(c) Insider trading arrangements and policies.

On February 26, 2025, Dave Nielsen, former President of the Company, terminated a trading plan intended to satisfy Rule 10b5-1(c) to sell up to
5,528 shares of Beyond, Inc. common stock between March 5, 2025 and December 31, 2025, subject to certain conditions.

During the three months ended March 31, 2025, other than Mr. Nielsen, no director or officer of the Company adopted or terminated a "Rule 10b5-1
trading arrangement" or "non-Rule 10b5-1 trading arrangement," as each term is defined in Item 408(a) of Regulation S-K.
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ITEM 6. EXHIBITS

(a) Exhibit Number Exhibit Description
2. 1%** Asset Purchase Agreement, dated June 12, 2023, by and among Overstock.com, Inc., Bed Bath & Beyond Inc. and certain
subsidiaries of Bed Bath & Beyond Inc., incorporated by reference to Exhibit 2.1 to the Company's Current Report on
Form 8-K filed on June 13, 2023
3.1 Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation, incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 to the Company's Quarterly,
Report on Form 10-Q filed on July 29, 2014
32 Certificate of Amendment to Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation, incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.2
to the Company's Current Report on Form 8-K filed on November 6, 2023
33 Certificate of Amendment to Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation, incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1
to the Company's Current Report on Form 8-K filed on May 24, 2024
34 Fourth Amended and Restated Bylaws, incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.2 to the Company's Current Report on Form
8-K filed on May 24, 2024
4.1 Form of Indenture, incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.3 to the Company's Registration Statement on Form S-3ASR
filed on June 10, 2024
10.1* Employment Letter Agreement between Beyond, Inc. and Adrianne Lee, dated as of March 10, 2025
10.2%* Employment Letter Agreement between Beyond, Inc. and Leah Putnam, dated as of March 10, 2025
10.3* Employment Letter Agreement between Beyond, Inc. and Alexander Thomas, dated as of March 10, 2025
31.1%* Rule 13a-14(a)/15d-14(a)_Certification of Principal Executive Officer
31.2% Rule 13a-14(a)/15d-14(a)_Certification of Principal Financial Officer
32.1%* Section 1350 Certification of Principal Executive Officer
32.2%* Section 1350 Certification of Principal Financial Officer
101 Attached as Exhibit 101 to this report are the following documents formatted in Inline XBRL (Extensible Business
Reporting Language): (i) Consolidated Balance Sheets, (ii) Consolidated Statements of Operations, (iii) Consolidated
Statements of Comprehensive Loss, (iv) Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows, (v) Consolidated Statements of
Stockholders' Equity, and (vi) Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
104 The cover page from the Company's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 2025, formatted in

Inline XBRL (included as Exhibit 101).

* Filed herewith.

** Furnished herewith.

*** Certain schedules and exhibits have been omitted pursuant to Item 601(a)(5) of Regulation S-K. The Reporting Company agrees to furnish
supplementally a copy of any omitted schedule or exhibit to the SEC upon request.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the
undersigned thereunto duly authorized.

Date: April 29, 2025 BEYOND, INC.

/s ADRIANNE B. LEE

Adrianne B. Lee

President and Chief Financial Officer
(Principal Financial Officer)
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Exhibit 10.1

March 10, 2025
Dear Adrianne,

We are pleased to offer you the position of President and CFO with Beyond, Inc. (“Beyond”).

The following is a summary of your compensation, benefits, and the terms and conditions of our employment offer:
Start Date: March 10, 2025

Employment Status: Full time, Exempt

Cash Salary Compensation: $26,923.08 per pay period, ($700,000 annually)

In order to receive the full annual amount of $700,000, you must be employed for all 26 pay periods.

Cash Bonus Plan: In addition to your base salary, you may be eligible to earn, for each fiscal year at the Company ending during the term of your employment
with the Company, an annual cash bonus, as approved from time to time by the Company’s Board of Directors or Compensation Committee. Your “target”
annual bonus for 2025 is currently set at 75% of your base salary. ($525,000) Your actual annual bonus will be determined on the basis of such Company and
individual performance criteria established by the Board of Directors or Compensation Committee in accordance with the terms and conditions of any bonus
plan adopted from time to time. Your annual bonus will be paid between January 1 and April 1 of the calendar year following the year to which it relates.
Except as otherwise provided in the Severance Plan (as defined below), you must be employed by the Company on the date of payment of such annual bonus
in order to be eligible to receive such annual bonus.

Equity: We will propose that you receive an incremental equity award of $200,000 comprised of

$100,000 of restricted stock units (“RSUs”) and $100,000 of performance stock units (“PSUs”) under the terms of the Company’s 2005 Equity Incentive
Plan (“EIP”) and the forms of the applicable award agreements which set forth the service periods and performance targets required for the awards to vest,
which RSUs and PSUs will be subject to and conditional upon all required targets being achieved and necessary corporate approvals being obtained.
(Incremental to the $1,100,000 of equity awards granted on 2/4/2025) Consistent with the EIP you may be eligible for refresh awards to be approved by the
Board or Compensation Committee at their discretion

Report to: Marcus Lemonis, Executive Chairman
Work Location: Beyond’s corporate offices: Salt Lake City, Utah

Flexible Time Away: Unaccrued, paid time off to be used (without set limits) for purposes such as vacation, relaxation, personal or family needs, and for
absences governed by Company leave policies. (subject to the limits specified in those policies)



You will continue to be eligible to participate in the following benefits.

e Medical
e Dental
e Vision

*  Supplemental Life and AD&D

*  Voluntary Accident, Critical illness, Hospital Indemnity
*  Flexible Spending Accounts (FSA)

*  Health Savings Account (HSA)

*  Prepaid Legal Services

* Basic Life and AD&D- Company Paid

*  Short/Long Term Disability- Company Paid

*  Employee Assistance Program (EAP)- Company Paid

*  Employee Wellness

*  Welcome Rewards

You will continue to be eligible to participate in the Beyond 401(k) Plan pursuant to the terms and conditions of such plan.

At-Will Employment; Severance Plan: Beyond, Inc. is an at-will employer. Nothing in this offer shall limit the right of Beyond, Inc. or yourself to terminate
the employment relationship. Notwithstanding the foregoing, you may be entitled to severance upon certain qualifying terminations of employment, as
outlined in the Company’s Key Employee Severance Plan (the “Severance Plan”). You will continue your designation as a Tier 2 Participant (as defined in the
Severance Plan) in the Severance Plan and you’re understanding that you agree to all the terms and conditions of the Severance Plan.

Compliance with Confidentiality Information Agreement and Company Policies: In connection with your employment with the Company, you will receive
and have access to Company confidential information and trade secrets. Accordingly, as a condition to your employment with the Company, you agree to
continue complying with your obligations set out in the Company’s standard form of Employee Confidentiality, Confidential Information and Invention
Assignment and Arbitration Agreement (the “Confidentiality Agreements”), previously entered into by you. In addition, you are required to abide by the
Company’s policies and procedures (including but not limited to the Company’s employee handbook), as adopted or modified from time to time within the
Company’s discretion, and acknowledge in writing that you have read and will comply with such policies and procedures (and provide additional such
acknowledgements as such policies and procedures may be modified from time to time). The Company may modify, revoke, suspend or terminate any of the
policies and/or procedures at any time, with or without notice.

Nothing in this Agreement or the Confidentiality Agreements shall prevent you from (i) communicating directly with, cooperating with, or providing
information to, or receiving financial awards from, any federal, state or local government agency, including without limitation the U.S. Securities and
Exchange Commission, the U.S. Commodity Futures Trading Commission, the U.S. Department of Justice, the U.S. Equal Employment Opportunity
Commission, or the U.S.



National Labor Relations Board, without notifying or seeking permission from the Company, (ii) exercising any rights you may have under Section 7 of the
U.S. National Labor Relations Act, such as the right to engage in concerted activity, including collective action or discussion concerning wages or working
conditions, or (iii) discussing or disclosing information about unlawful acts in the workplace, such as harassment or discrimination based on a protected
characteristic or any other conduct that you have reason to believe is unlawful. In addition, you acknowledge receipt of the following notice of immunity
rights under the U.S. Defend Trade Secrets Act, which states: “(1) An individual shall not be held criminally or civilly liable under any federal or state trade
secret law for the disclosure of a trade secret that (A) is made (i) in confidence to a Federal, State, or local government official, either directly or indirectly, or
to an attorney; and (ii) solely for the purpose of reporting or investigating a suspected violation of law; or (B) is made in a complaint or other document filed
in a lawsuit or other proceeding, if such filing is made under seal; and (2) an individual who files a lawsuit for retaliation by an employer for reporting a
suspected violation of law may disclose a trade secret to the attorney of the individual and use the trade secret information in the court proceeding, if the
individual (A) files any document containing the trade secret under seal, and (B) does not disclose a trade secret, except pursuant to court order.”

Protection of Third-Party Information: By signing this Agreement, you are representing that you have full authority to accept this position and perform the
duties of the position without conflict with any other obligations and that you are not involved in any situation that might create, or appear to create, a conflict
of interest with respect to your loyalty to or duties for the Company. You specifically warrant that you are not subject to an employment agreement or
restrictive covenant preventing full performance of your duties to the Company. You agree not to make any unauthorized disclosure or use, on behalf of the
Company, of any confidential information belonging to any of your former employers. You also represent that you are not in unauthorized possession of any
materials containing a third party’s confidential and proprietary information.

Indemnification: During your employment you shall be subject to and covered by a written indemnification agreement between you and the Company in the
form applicable to the Company’s executive officers, which form will be or may have already been provided to you prior to your start date (the
“Indemnification Agreement”).

Tax Matters; Withholding: All amounts payable to you by the Company will be subject to applicable tax withholding. Section 6(a) of the Severance Plan
(“Application of Section 409A”) is hereby incorporated herein by reference (as are any defined terms from the Severance Plan used in such section) (with
references to the “Plan” in such section amended to refer to this “Agreement” and references to “Participant” amended to refer to you).

Governing Law: The validity, interpretation, construction and performance of this Agreement, and all acts and transactions pursuant hereto and the rights and
obligations of the parties hereto shall be governed, construed and interpreted in accordance with the laws of State of Utah, without giving effect to principles
of conflicts of law.



Entire Agreement: You acknowledge and agree that as of your execution of this Agreement, your sole entitlement to any compensation or benefits from the
Company will be as set forth in this Agreement. This Agreement, together with the Confidentiality Agreements, the Indemnification Agreement and the
documents governing any equity awards granted to you, sets forth the entire agreement and understanding of the parties relating to the subject matter herein
and supersedes all prior or contemporaneous discussions, understandings and agreements, whether oral or written, between you and the Company relating
to the subject matter hereof. No amendment or modification to this Agreement shall be effective unless it is in writing and signed by an authorized officer
of the Company and by you.

Counterparts: This Agreement may be executed in any number of counterparts, each of which when so executed and delivered shall be deemed an original,
and all of which together shall constitute one and the same agreement. Facsimile and electronic image signatures (including .pdf or any electronic signature
complying with the U.S. federal ESIGN Act of 2000, Uniform Electronic Transactions Act or other applicable law) will be deemed an original and valid
signature.

Please sign below and return this document via Adobe Sign. If you have any questions, please contact me directly. We look forward to working with you.

Sincerely, I accept the above terms of employment.

/s/ ROB CARPENTER /sl ADRIANNE LEE 4/23/2025
Rob Carpenter Adrianne Lee Date
Head of HR & Facilities

CONFIDENTIAL — PROPERTY OF BEYOND, INC. the existence and terms of this letter and all related communications are confidential and intended only
for your personal and family consideration.



Exhibit 10.2

March 10, 2025

Dear Leah,

We are pleased to offer you the position of Chief Accounting Officer with Beyond, Inc. (“Beyond”).

The following is a summary of your compensation, benefits, and the terms and conditions of our employment offer:

Start Date: March 10, 2025

Employment Status: Full time, Exempt

Cash Salary Compensation: $12,500 per pay period, ($325,000 annually)

In order to receive the full annual amount of $325,000, you must be employed for all 26 pay periods.

Cash Bonus Plan: In addition to your base salary, you may be eligible to earn, for each fiscal year at the Company ending during the term of your
employment with the Company, an annual cash bonus, as approved from time to time by the Company’s Board of Directors or Compensation Committee.
Your “target” annual bonus for 2025 is currently set at 50% of your base salary. ($162,500) Your actual annual bonus will be determined on the basis of
such Company and individual performance criteria established by the Board of Directors or Compensation Committee in accordance with the terms and
conditions of any bonus plan adopted from time to time. Your annual bonus will be paid between January 1 and April 1 of the calendar year following the
year to which it relates. Except as otherwise provided in the Severance Plan (as defined below), you must be employed by the Company on the date of
payment of such annual bonus in order to be eligible to receive such annual bonus.

Equity: We will propose that you receive an incremental equity award of $175,000 comprised of $31,250 of restricted stock units (“RSUs”) and $143,750 of
performance stock units (“PSUs”) under the terms of the Company’s 2005 Equity Incentive Plan (“EIP”) and the forms of the applicable award agreements
which set forth the service periods and performance targets required for the awards to vest, which RSUs and PSUs will be subject to and conditional upon all
required targets being achieved and necessary corporate approvals being obtained. (Incremental to the $225,000 of equity awards granted on 2/4/2025)
Consistent with the EIP you may be eligible for refresh awards to be approved by the Board or Compensation Committee at their discretion

Report to: Adrianne Lee, President & CFO of Beyond Inc.

Work Location: Florida



Flexible Time Away: Unaccrued, paid time off to be used (without set limits) for purposes such as vacation, relaxation, personal or family needs, and for
absences governed by Company leave policies. (subject to the limits specified in those policies)

You will continue to be eligible to participate in the following benefits.

e Medical
¢ Dental
¢ Vision

*  Supplemental Life and AD&D

*  Voluntary Accident, Critical illness, Hospital Indemnity
*  Flexible Spending Accounts (FSA)

*  Health Savings Account (HSA)

*  Prepaid Legal Services

* Basic Life and AD&D- Company Paid

*  Short/Long Term Disability- Company Paid

*  Employee Assistance Program (EAP)- Company Paid

*  Employee Wellness

*  Welcome Rewards

You will continue to be eligible to participate in the Beyond 401(k) Plan pursuant to the terms and conditions of such plan.

At-Will Employment; Severance Plan: Beyond, Inc. is an at-will employer. Nothing in this offer shall limit the right of Beyond, Inc. or yourself to terminate
the employment relationship. Notwithstanding the foregoing, you may be entitled to severance upon certain qualifying terminations of employment, as
outlined in the Company’s Key Employee Severance Plan (the “Severance Plan”). A copy of the Severance Plan is attached to this Agreement. By signing
this Agreement, you acknowledge your designation as a Tier 3 Participant (as defined in the Severance Plan) in the Severance Plan and you’re understanding
that you agree to all the terms and conditions of the Severance Plan.

Compliance with Confidentiality Information Agreement and Company Policies: In connection with your employment with the Company, you will receive
and have access to Company confidential information and trade secrets. Accordingly, as a condition to your employment with the Company, you agree to
continue complying with your obligations set out in the Company’s standard form of Employee Confidentiality, Confidential Information and Invention
Assignment and Arbitration Agreement (the “Confidentiality Agreements”), previously entered into by you. In addition, you are required to abide by the
Company’s policies and procedures (including but not limited to the Company’s employee handbook), as adopted or modified from time to time within the
Company’s discretion, and acknowledge in writing that you have read and will comply with such policies and procedures (and provide additional such
acknowledgements as such policies and procedures may be modified from time to time). The Company may modity, revoke, suspend or terminate any of
the policies and/or procedures at any time, with or without notice.



Nothing in this Agreement or the Confidentiality Agreements shall prevent you from (i) communicating directly with, cooperating with, or providing
information to, or receiving financial awards from, any federal, state or local government agency, including without limitation the U.S. Securities and
Exchange Commission, the U.S. Commodity Futures Trading Commission, the U.S. Department of Justice, the U.S. Equal Employment Opportunity
Commission, or the U.S. National Labor Relations Board, without notifying or seeking permission from the Company, (ii) exercising any rights you may have
under Section 7 of the U.S. National Labor Relations Act, such as the right to engage in concerted activity, including collective action or discussion
concerning wages or working conditions, or (iii) discussing or disclosing information about unlawful acts in the workplace, such as harassment or
discrimination based on a protected characteristic or any other conduct that you have reason to believe is unlawful. In addition, you acknowledge receipt of
the following notice of immunity rights under the U.S. Defend Trade Secrets Act, which states: “(1) An individual shall not be held criminally or civilly liable
under any federal or state trade secret law for the disclosure of a trade secret that (A) is made (i) in confidence to a Federal, State, or local government official,
either directly or indirectly, or to an attorney; and (ii) solely for the purpose of reporting or investigating a suspected violation of law; or (B) is made in a
complaint or other document filed in a lawsuit or other proceeding, if such filing is made under seal; and (2) an individual who files a lawsuit for retaliation
by an employer for reporting a suspected violation of law may disclose a trade secret to the attorney of the individual and use the trade secret information in
the court proceeding, if the individual (A) files any document containing the trade secret under seal, and (B) does not disclose a trade secret, except pursuant
to court order.”

Protection of Third-Party Information: By signing this Agreement, you are representing that you have full authority to accept this position and perform the
duties of the position without conflict with any other obligations and that you are not involved in any situation that might create, or appear to create, a
conflict of interest with respect to your loyalty to or duties for the Company. You specifically warrant that you are not subject to an employment agreement
or restrictive covenant preventing full performance of your duties to the Company. You agree not to make any unauthorized disclosure or use, on behalf of
the Company, of any confidential information belonging to any of your former employers. You also represent that you are not in unauthorized possession of
any materials containing a third party’s confidential and proprietary information.

Indemnification: During your employment you shall be subject to and covered by a written indemnification agreement between you and the Company in the
form applicable to the Company’s executive officers, which form will be provided to you prior to your start date (the “Indemnification Agreement”).

Tax Matters; Withholding: All amounts payable to you by the Company will be subject to applicable tax withholding. Section 6(a) of the Severance Plan
(“Application of Section 409A”) is hereby incorporated herein by reference (as are any defined terms from the Severance Plan used in such section) (with
references to the “Plan” in such section amended to refer to this “Agreement” and references to “Participant” amended to refer to you).



Governing Law: The validity, interpretation, construction and performance of this Agreement, and all acts and transactions pursuant hereto and the rights and
obligations of the parties hereto shall be governed, construed and interpreted in accordance with the laws of State of Florida, without giving effect to
principles of conflicts of law.

Entire Agreement: You acknowledge and agree that as of your execution of this Agreement, your sole entitlement to any compensation or benefits from the
Company will be as set forth in this Agreement. This Agreement, together with the Confidentiality Agreements, the Indemnification Agreement and the
documents governing any equity awards granted to you, sets forth the entire agreement and understanding of the parties relating to the subject matter herein
and supersedes all prior or contemporaneous discussions, understandings and agreements, whether oral or written, between you and the Company relating to
the subject matter hereof. No amendment or modification to this Agreement shall be effective unless it is in writing and signed by an authorized officer of
the Company and by you.

Counterparts: This Agreement may be executed in any number of counterparts, each of which when so executed and delivered shall be deemed an original,
and all of which together shall constitute one and the same agreement. Facsimile and electronic image signatures (including .pdf or any electronic signature
complying with the U.S. federal ESIGN Act of 2000, Uniform Electronic Transactions Act or other applicable law) will be deemed an original and valid
signature.

Please sign below and return this document via Adobe Sign. If you have any questions, please contact me directly. We look forward to working with you.

Sincerely, I accept the above terms of employment.

/s ROB CARPENTER /s/ LEAH PUTNAM 3/18/2025
Rob Carpenter Leah Putnam Date
Head of HR & Facilities

CONFIDENTIAL — PROPERTY OF BEYOND, INC. the existence and terms of this letter and all related communications are confidential and intended only
for your personal and family consideration.



Exhibit 10.3

March 10, 2025

Dear Alex,

We are pleased to offer you the position of Chief Operating Officer with Beyond, Inc. (“Beyond”).

The following is a summary of your compensation, benefits, and the terms and conditions of our employment offer:

Start Date: March 10, 2025

Employment Status: Full time, Exempt

Cash Salary Compensation: $13,461.54 per pay period, ($350,000 annually)

In order to receive the full annual amount of $350,000, you must be employed for all 26 pay periods.

Cash Bonus Plan: In addition to your base salary, you may be eligible to earn, for each fiscal year at the Company ending during the term of your employment
with the Company, an annual cash bonus, as approved from time to time by the Company’s Board of Directors or Compensation Committee. Your “target”
annual bonus for 2025 is currently set at 50% of your base salary. ($175,000) Your actual annual bonus will be determined on the basis of such Company and
individual performance criteria established by the Board of Directors or Compensation Committee in accordance with the terms and conditions of any bonus
plan adopted from time to time. Your annual bonus will be paid between January 1 and April 1 of the calendar year following the year to which it relates.
Except as otherwise provided in the Severance Plan (as defined below), you must be employed by the Company on the date of payment of such annual bonus
in order to be eligible to receive such annual bonus.

Equity: We will propose that you receive an incremental equity award of $200,000 comprised of $100,000 of restricted stock units (“RSUs”) and $100,000 of
performance stock units (“PSUs”) under the terms of the Company’s 2005 Equity Incentive Plan (“EIP”) and the forms of the applicable award agreements
which set forth the service periods and performance targets required for the awards to vest, which RSUs and PSUs will be subject to and conditional upon all
required targets being achieved and necessary corporate approvals being obtained. (Incremental to the $400,000 of equity awards granted on 2/4/2025)
Consistent with the EIP you may be eligible for refresh awards to be approved by the Board or Compensation Committee at their discretion

Report to: Adrianne Lee, President & CFO of Beyond Inc.

Work Location: Beyond’s corporate offices: Salt Lake City, Utah

Flexible Time Away: Unaccrued, paid time off to be used (without set limits) for purposes such as vacation, relaxation, personal or family needs, and for
absences governed by Company leave policies. (subject to the limits specified in those policies)



You will continue to be eligible to participate in the following benefits.

e Medical
¢ Dental
e Vision

*  Supplemental Life and AD&D

*  Voluntary Accident, Critical illness, Hospital Indemnity
*  Flexible Spending Accounts (FSA)

*  Health Savings Account (HSA)

*  Prepaid Legal Services

* Basic Life and AD&D- Company Paid

*  Short/Long Term Disability- Company Paid

*  Employee Assistance Program (EAP)- Company Paid

*  Employee Wellness

*  Welcome Rewards

You will continue to be eligible to participate in the Beyond 401(k) Plan pursuant to the terms and conditions of such plan.

At-Will Employment; Severance Plan: Beyond, Inc. is an at-will employer. Nothing in this offer shall limit the right of Beyond, Inc. or yourself to terminate
the employment relationship. Notwithstanding the foregoing, you may be entitled to severance upon certain qualifying terminations of employment, as
outlined in the Company’s Key Employee Severance Plan (the “Severance Plan”). You will continue your designation as a Tier 3 Participant (as defined in the
Severance Plan) in the Severance Plan and you’re understanding that you agree to all the terms and conditions of the Severance Plan.

Compliance with Confidentiality Information Agreement and Company Policies: In connection with your employment with the Company, you will receive
and have access to Company confidential information and trade secrets. Accordingly, as a condition to your employment with the Company, you agree to
continue complying with your obligations set out in the Company’s standard form of Employee Confidentiality, Confidential Information and Invention
Assignment and Arbitration Agreement (the “Confidentiality Agreements”), previously entered into by you. In addition, you are required to abide by the
Company’s policies and procedures (including but not limited to the Company’s employee handbook), as adopted or modified from time to time within the
Company’s discretion, and acknowledge in writing that you have read and will comply with such policies and procedures (and provide additional such
acknowledgements as such policies and procedures may be modified from time to time). The Company may modify, revoke, suspend or terminate any of the
policies and/or procedures at any time, with or without notice.

Nothing in this Agreement or the Confidentiality Agreements shall prevent you from (i) communicating directly with, cooperating with, or providing
information to, or receiving financial awards from, any federal, state or local government agency, including without limitation the U.S. Securities and
Exchange Commission, the U.S. Commodity Futures Trading Commission, the U.S. Department of Justice, the U.S. Equal Employment Opportunity
Commission, or the U.S.



National Labor Relations Board, without notifying or seeking permission from the Company, (ii) exercising any rights you may have under Section 7 of the
U.S. National Labor Relations Act, such as the right to engage in concerted activity, including collective action or discussion concerning wages or working
conditions, or (iii) discussing or disclosing information about unlawful acts in the workplace, such as harassment or discrimination based on a protected
characteristic or any other conduct that you have reason to believe is unlawful. In addition, you acknowledge receipt of the following notice of immunity
rights under the U.S. Defend Trade Secrets Act, which states: “(1) An individual shall not be held criminally or civilly liable under any federal or state trade
secret law for the disclosure of a trade secret that (A) is made (i) in confidence to a Federal, State, or local government official, either directly or indirectly, or
to an attorney; and (ii) solely for the purpose of reporting or investigating a suspected violation of law; or (B) is made in a complaint or other document filed
in a lawsuit or other proceeding, if such filing is made under seal; and (2) an individual who files a lawsuit for retaliation by an employer for reporting a
suspected violation of law may disclose a trade secret to the attorney of the individual and use the trade secret information in the court proceeding, if the
individual (A) files any document containing the trade secret under seal, and (B) does not disclose a trade secret, except pursuant to court order.”

Protection of Third-Party Information: By signing this Agreement, you are representing that you have full authority to accept this position and perform the
duties of the position without conflict with any other obligations and that you are not involved in any situation that might create, or appear to create, a conflict
of interest with respect to your loyalty to or duties for the Company. You specifically warrant that you are not subject to an employment agreement or
restrictive covenant preventing full performance of your duties to the Company. You agree not to make any unauthorized disclosure or use, on behalf of the
Company, of any confidential information belonging to any of your former employers. You also represent that you are not in unauthorized possession of any
materials containing a third party’s confidential and proprietary information.

Indemnification: During your employment you shall be subject to and covered by a written indemnification agreement between you and the Company in the
form applicable to the Company’s executive officers, which form will be provided to you prior to your start date (the “Indemnification Agreement”).

Tax Matters; Withholding: All amounts payable to you by the Company will be subject to applicable tax withholding. Section 6(a) of the Severance Plan
(“Application of Section 409A”) is hereby incorporated herein by reference (as are any defined terms from the Severance Plan used in such section) (with
references to the “Plan” in such section amended to refer to this “Agreement” and references to “Participant” amended to refer to you).

Governing Law: The validity, interpretation, construction and performance of this Agreement, and all acts and transactions pursuant hereto and the rights and
obligations of the parties hereto shall be governed, construed and interpreted in accordance with the laws of State of Utah, without giving effect to principles
of conflicts of law.



Entire Agreement: You acknowledge and agree that as of your execution of this Agreement, your sole entitlement to any compensation or benefits from the
Company will be as set forth in this Agreement. This Agreement, together with the Confidentiality Agreements, the Indemnification Agreement and the
documents governing any equity awards granted to you, sets forth the entire agreement and understanding of the parties relating to the subject matter herein
and supersedes all prior or contemporaneous discussions, understandings and agreements, whether oral or written, between you and the Company relating
to the subject matter hereof. No amendment or modification to this Agreement shall be effective unless it is in writing and signed by an authorized officer of
the Company and by you.

Counterparts: This Agreement may be executed in any number of counterparts, each of which when so executed and delivered shall be deemed an original,
and all of which together shall constitute one and the same agreement. Facsimile and electronic image signatures (including .pdf or any electronic signature
complying with the U.S. federal ESIGN Act of 2000, Uniform Electronic Transactions Act or other applicable law) will be deemed an original and valid
signature.

Please sign below and return this document via Adobe Sign. If you have any questions, please contact me directly. We look forward to working with you.

Sincerely, I accept the above terms of employment.

/s/ ROB CARPENTER /s/ ALEX THOMAS 3/18/2025
Rob Carpenter Alex Thomas Date
Head of HR & Facilities

CONFIDENTIAL — PROPERTY OF BEYOND, INC. the existence and terms of this letter and all related communications are confidential and intended only
for your personal and family consideration.



Exhibit 31.1

CERTIFICATION

I, Marcus A. Lemonis, certify that:

Date:

I have reviewed this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q of Beyond, Inc.;

Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the
statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this
report;

Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the
financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in
Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-
15(f)) for the registrant and have:

a. designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to
ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those
entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;

b. designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our
supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external
purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

c. evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

d. disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant’s most recent
fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially
affect, the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and

The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting,
to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

a. all significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

b. any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant’s internal
control over financial reporting.

April 29, 2025 /s/ MARCUS A. LEMONIS
Marcus A. Lemonis

Executive Chairman of the Board of Directors
(Principal Executive Officer)



Exhibit 31.2

CERTIFICATION

I, Adrianne B. Lee, certify that:

Date:

I have reviewed this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q of Beyond, Inc.;

Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the
statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this
report;

Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the
financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in
Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-
15(f)) for the registrant and have:

a. designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to
ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those
entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;

b. designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our
supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external
purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

c. evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

d. disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant’s most recent
fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially
affect, the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and

The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting,
to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

a. all significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

b. any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant’s internal
control over financial reporting.

April 29, 2025 /s/ ADRIANNE B. LEE
Adrianne B. Lee
President and Chief Financial Officer
(Principal Financial Officer)




Exhibit 32.1
CERTIFICATION OF PRINCIPAL EXECUTIVE OFFICER
PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO

SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002
I, Marcus A. Lemonis, certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, as amended, that the
Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q of Beyond, Inc. for the quarter ended March 31, 2025 (the "Report") fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or

15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, and that information contained in such Report fairly presents in all material respects the financial
condition and results of operations of Beyond, Inc.

Date:  April 29, 2025 /s MARCUS A. LEMONIS
Marcus A. Lemonis
Executive Chairman of the Board of Directors
(Principal Executive Officer)




Exhibit 32.2
CERTIFICATION OF PRINCIPAL FINANCIAL OFFICER
PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002
I, Adrianne B. Lee, certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, as amended, that the

Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q of Beyond, Inc. for the quarter ended March 31, 2025 (the "Report") fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or

15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, and that information contained in such Report fairly presents in all material respects the financial
condition and results of operations of Beyond, Inc.

Date:  April 29, 2025 /s/ ADRIANNE B. LEE
Adrianne B. Lee
President and Chief Financial Officer
(Principal Financial Officer)




